OFFICIAL AGENDA
TUESDAY January 6, 2026
Meeting Start Time: 9:00 a.m.
Board of County Commissioners
Yellowstone County, Montana
City Hall
316 N. 26th Street, Room 3108
Billings, MT
8:45 a.m. Agenda Setting

Pledge to the Flag: Moment of Silence: Minutes
REGULAR AGENDA

9:00 a.m. PRESENTATION

Swearing in New Sheriff's Deputies
Deputy Tyger Harris
Deputy Bradley Wood

9:00 a.m. PUBLIC HEARING

Resolution 26-02 to Increase Solid Waste Disposal District Fee

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON REGULAR, CONSENT AND FILED AGENDA ITEMS

1. FINANCE

Notice of Public Hearing for Considering Budget Amendments for Fiscal Year 2026

CLAIMS

CONSENT AGENDA

1. FINANCE

a. Resolution 25-137; 2026 Mileage Reimbursement and Per Diem Rates
b. MetraPark Contract - Skybox Renovation - Bauer Construction, Inc.

2. METRA PARK
Bond for Lot Warrant

3. YOUTH SERVICES
Contract Amendment No. 4 - YSC & DOC

4, HUMAN RESOURCES

PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - County Attorney - 1 Appointment, 6 Salary &
Other; Detention Facility - 1 Appointment; Sheriff's Office - 1 Salary & Other

FILE ITEMS

1. CLERK AND RECORDER

Board Minutes - Lockwood Irrigation District

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON COUNTY BUSINESS
*Public comment is an opportunity for individuals to address the Board, however, the Board cannot
engage in discussion or take action on items not properly noticed on the agenda.



B.O.C.C. Regular

Meeting Date: 01/06/2026

Title: Swearing in New Deputies
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:

Swearing in New Sheriff's Deputies
Deputy Tyger Harris
Deputy Bradley Wood

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Swear in.




B.O.C.C. Regular

Meeting Date: 01/06/2026

Title: Resolution 26-02 to Increase Solid Waste Disposal District Fee
Submitted By: Anna Ullom, Senior Accountant

TOPIC:
Resolution 26-02 to Increase Solid Waste Disposal District Fee

BACKGROUND:

Resolution to increase the Solid Waste Disposal District fee from $25.00 to $30.00 due to increased
costs associated with City of Billings Landfill Contract.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve.

Attachments
Res #26-02 Raising Solid Waste Disposal Fee




YELLOWSTONE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Resolution No. 26-02

Resolution to Increase Fee for Yellowstone County Solid Waste Disposal District

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 7-11-1001 through 7-11-1029 of the Montana Code
Annotated, a board of county commissioners has the authority to create a county solid waste
disposal district. Pursuant to Section 7-11-1024(1) of the Montana Code Annotated, a board may
assess a fee for a solid waste disposal district. Pursuant to Section 7-11-1025, to assess a fee a
board shall pass a resolution of intent and set a public hearing on the fee. The resolution of
intent shall contain a list of the parcels in the district, the names of the parcel owners and the
amount of the assessment against each of the parcels. The board shall publish notice of the
public hearing. The board shall accept comments on the fee, including objections to the fee. The
board shall hold a public hearing and hear comments on the fee, including objections on the fee.
The board shall pass a resolution to enact the fee.

WHEREAS, the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners has created the
Yellowstone County Solid Waste Disposal District. The Yellowstone County Commission
manages the District. The County Commission wants to increase the fee for the District from
$25.00 to $35.00 per residential parcel located within the District effective as of July 1, 2026.
The County Commission wants to increase the fee because of projected increases in the cost to
dispose of the waste charged by the City of Billings. The Board of County Commissioners
believes that the fee increase is necessary to maintain the current level of service provided by
the District.

WHEREAS, on December 23, 2025, the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners
passed a resolution of intent to increase the fee for the Yellowstone County Solid Waste Disposal
District and set a public hearing on the fee increase for January 6, 2026. The Yellowstone
County Clerk and Recorder provided notice of the hearing, received written objections and
comments on the fee increase and provided the objections and comments to the Board before the
hearing. On December 26, 2025 and January 2, 2026, the Clerk and Recorder published notice
of the hearing in the Yellowstone County News.

WHEREAS, on January 6, 2026, the Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners held
a public hearing on the fee increase. The Board received written objections and both written and
oral comments on the fee increase. The Board considered the objections and comments. The
Board found that the fee increase is in the best interest of the public, is needed to cover increased
costs and is needed to maintain the current level of service provided by the District.

Resolution No. 26-02
Resolution to Increase Fee for Yellowstone County Solid Waste Disposal District
lof2



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,

The Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners increases the fee assessed by the
Yellowstone County Solid Waste Disposal District on residential properties from $25.00 to
$35.00 effective as of July 1, 2026 per parcel to continue until otherwise amended. A list of the
parcels in the District, the owners of the parcels in the District and the new assessment for each
parcel in the District is available in the Clerk & Recorder’s Office with Resolution 26-02 of
Intent to Increase Fees for Yellowstone County Solid Waste Disposal District.

Passed and Adopted on the 6th day of January 2026.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA

Mark Morse, Chairman

Michael J. Waters, Member Attest:

Chris White, Member Jeff Martin
Yellowstone County Clerk and Recorder

Resolution No. 26-02
Resolution to Increase Fee for Yellowstone County Solid Waste Disposal District
20f2



B.O.C.C. Regular

Meeting Date: 01/06/2026

Title: Notice of Public Hearing for Considering Budget Amendments for Fiscal Year 2026
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Notice of Public Hearing for Considering Budget Amendments for Fiscal Year 2026

BACKGROUND:
See Attached

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve or Deny

Attachments
Notice of Public Hearing for Considering Budget Amendments for Fiscal Year 2026




NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of County Commissioners of
Yellowstone County, Montana will conduct public hearings for the purpose of
considering budget amendments for Fiscal Year 2026 (FY26). The budget
amendments for FY26 consist of budget modifications for grants, budget changes,
and line-item transfers or modifications. The proposed budget changes will be
placed on file and will be open to public inspection in Room 420 located in the
Ostlund Building at 2825 3™ Avenue North. The Board of County Commissioners
of Yellowstone County will meet on Monday, February 9, 2026, at 9:00 a.m.
in the Commissioners' Board Room 309, located in the Ostlund Building at 2825
3 Avenue North. Any taxpayer may appear at said meetings and provide
testimony either for or against any part of the proposed budget amendments.

DATED this 6% day of January 2026.

/s/ Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder
Yellowstone County, Montana



B.O.C.C. Regular 1. a.
Meeting Date: 01/06/2026

Title: Resolution #25 - 137 Travel & Per Diem Rates 2026

Submitted For: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent Submitted By: Russell Burton, Comptroller

TOPIC:
Resolution 25-137; 2026 Mileage Reimbursement and Per Diem Rates

BACKGROUND:

The Internal Revenue Services has not changed their standard mileage rate for 2026. Beginning on
January 1st, 2026, the standard mileage rate for use of car (includes vans, pickups or panel trucks) is
68 cents per mile driven for business use. Rates for any mileage over 1,000 miles in a given calendar
month will be reimbursed at 65 cents per mile per MCA 2-18-503(b). Montana Association of Counties
(MACO) Meal rates for 2026 (unchanged); * $16.00 for the morning meal * $19.00 for the midday meal
* $28.00 for the evening meal

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the 2026 rates and return a copy to Finance

Attachments
Res 25-137 Travel and Per Diem Reimb Rate




YELLOWSTONE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Resolution No. 25- 137
Resolution to Set Travel and Per Diem Reimbursement Rates for Calendar Year 2026
WHEREAS, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has adopted standard mileage rates for calendar year 2026.
WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 2-18-503(b) of the Montana Code Annotated “When a privately owned motor
vehicle is used because a government-owned or government-leased motor vehicle is not available or because the use
is in the best interest of the governmental entity and a notice of unavailability of a government-owned or government-
leased motor vehicle or a specific exemption is attached to the travel claim, then a rate equal to the mileage allotment
allowed by the United States internal revenue service for the current year must be paid for the first 1,000 miles and 3
cents less per mile for all additional miles traveled within a given calendar month.”
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners annually adopt the travel and per diem reimbursement rates.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,
The Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners adopts the Attachment Al - Travel Policy; Travel and Per
Diem Rates.

Passed and Adopted on the 6™ day of January 2026.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA

Mark Morse, Chair

Michael J] Waters, Member ATTEST:

Chris White, Member Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder

Resolution No. 25 - 137
Resolution to Set Travel and Per Diem Reimbursement Rates for Calendar Year 2026
lofl




Resolution # 25-137 Attachment Al

(Replaces AH)

TRAVEL POLICY

Yellowstone County

TRAVEL AND PER DIEM RATES

Effective date 01/01/2026

1. Time Period: 01/01/2026 - 12/31/2026

Mileage Rate: 68 cents per mile. All mileage over 1,000 miles in the same month will be reimbursed at 65
cents per mile.

3. Meals
In State & Out of State

Breakfast $16.00
Lunch $19.00
Dinner $28.00

4. Llodging:
In State and Out of State: Reasonable and necessary expenses will be reimbursed at actual cost.



B.O.C.C. Regular 1. b.
Meeting Date: 01/06/2026

Title: MetraPark Contract - Skybox Renovation - Bauer Construction, Inc.

Submitted For: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent

Submitted By: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
MetraPark Contract - Skybox Renovation - Bauer Construction, Inc.

BACKGROUND:

MetraPark is requesting Commissioners' approval for a contract with Bauer Construction, Inc., the
awarded contractor for the Metra Skybox Renovation. This contract will include all labor, materials, and
equipment necessary to complete the renovation of the skybox suites located in the First Interstate
Arena. The total contract value is $157,334.00.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Sign contract and return a copy to Finance.

Attachments
Skybox Reno Contract




YELLOWSTONE COUNTY
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR CONTRACT

This Contract is entered into by and between Yellowstone County, Montana, herein referred to as
“COUNTY”, and Bauer Construction, Inc., herein referred to as “CONTRACTOR?”, whose address is
3333 2™ Ave N, Suite 240, Billings, MT 59101.

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES: CONTRACTOR agrees to provide all labor, materials, and equipment
necessary to complete the renovation of the skybox suites located in the First Interstate Arena
located at MetraPark campus, as detailed in the Metra Skybox Renovation IFB, published by
COUNTY on October 28™, 2025.

COUNTY will give CONTRACTOR access to two (2) skybox suites at a time to renovate.
CONTRACTOR is expected to work around the event schedule of MetraPark events. Exhibit A details
the schedule of when there are events and when the skyboxes are open for renovation. Work must
be phased to ensure that MetraPark is able to use all skyboxes for events that are scheduled.

All of CONTRACTOR’s equipment & materials must be out of the skybox suites the day before an
event. Rooms are not required to be substantially complete before an event and minor aesthetic
work that needs to be complete is acceptable. If CONTRACTOR anticipates that the suites will not
be finished by the day before the scheduled event, CONTRACTOR will coordinate with COUNTY two
days before an event to ensure the suites will be at an acceptable condition.

2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: COUNTY hereby employs CONTRACTOR as an independent
contractor to complete and perform the scope of services. Neither CONTRACTOR or its principals
or employees are employees of COUNTY.

3. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TIME OF PERFORMANCE: CONTRACTOR shall commence work upon
approval of this Contract by both parties and shall complete the described work by April 1%, 2026.

4. COMPENSTATION: For the satisfactory completion of the scope of services, COUNTY shall pay
CONTRACTOR a total of $157,334.00. CONTRACTOR should submit invoices directly to COUNTY
upon satisfactory completion of services for the period being invoiced. Any Change Orders for the
project must be approved in writing by COUNTY prior to work being started. COUNTY shall pay
invoices within 30 days of invoice date. Retainage of 5% will be withheld for any progress payments
made by CONTRACTOR. The fee will be returned to CONTRACTOR upon completion of the project
and acceptance by COUNTY. 1% Gross Receipts Tax will be deducted and forwarded to the State of
Montana.

5. CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATION:

1. CONTRACTOR has examined and reviewed Contract Documents and other related
paperwork



2. CONTRACTOR has visited the site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the
general, local and site conditions that may affect cost, progress, performance and
furnishing of the work.

3. CONTRACTOR is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state and local laws and
regulations that may affect cost, progress and furnishing of the work.

4. CONTRACTOR has given COUNTY written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities or
discrepancies that CONTRACTOR has discovered in the Contract Documents and that
the Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey the
understanding of all terms and conditions for performance of the scope of services.

6. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire agreement
between COUNTY and CONTRACTOR, consist of the following:

This agreement

Exhibit A - Event Dates for Phasing Work

COUNTY’s Invitation for Bid dated, October 28™", 2025

CONTRACTOR’s bid dated, December 15™, 2025

CONTRACTOR'’s certificate of insurance and workers compensation coverage

aprod=

7. WARRANTY: All work completed, and materials provided by CONTRACTOR must be warranted for
a period of one (1) year from the time the services are completed.

8. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT: This Contract contains the entire agreement between parties,
and no statements or promises made by either party, or agents of either party, which are not
contained in the written Contract, are valid or binding. This Contract may not be modified or altered
except upon written agreement signed by both parties. Any subcontractor shall be bound by all of
the terms and conditions of this Contract.

9. INSURANCE: CONTRACTOR shall maintain at its sole cost and expense, commercial general
liability insurance from an insurance carrier licensed to do business in the State of Montana in the
amount of seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($750,000.00) for each occurrence (minimum)
and one million, five hundred thousand dollars ($1,500,000.00) aggregate. CONTRACTOR also
agrees to maintain workers compensation insurance from an insurance carrier licensed to do
business in the State of Montana. Proof of general liability and workers compensation insurance
shall be provided to COUNTY at least ten (10) days prior to beginning work under this Contract.
COUNTY must be listed as an additional insured on the general liability insurance certificate for this
Contract.

10. INDEMNIFICATION: CONTRACTOR agrees to waive all claims and recourse against COUNTY,
including the right of contribution for loss and damage to persons or property arising from, growing
out of, or in any way connected with incidental to CONTRACTOR’s performance of this Contract
except for liability arising out of concurrent or sole negligence of COUNTY or its officers, agents or
employees. Further, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend COUNTY against all
claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses or liability arising out of CONTRACTORS’s negligent




performance of this Contract except for liability arising out of the concurrent or sole negligence of
COUNTY or its offices, agents or employees.

11. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: CONTRACTOR shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local
laws, rules and regulations, including the Montana Human Rights Act, Civil Rights Act of 1964, The
Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and the American with Disabilities Act of 1990. CONTRACTOR or
their subcontractors agrees that the hiring of persons to perform the contract will be made on the
basis of merit and qualification and there will be no discrimination based upon race, color, religion,
creed, political ideas, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, or national origin by the
person performing under the Contract.

12. PERMITS: CONTRACTOR is responsible for obtaining any and all permits required to perform
work under the Contract.

13. PREVAILING WAGE: All employees employed by CONTRACTOR or their subcontractor(s) in
performance of this Contract which exceeds twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) will be paid
wages at rates as may be required by the laws of the State of Montana in accordance with the
schedule of Montana Prevailing Wage Rates established by the Montana Department of Labor and
Industry.

Each CONTRACTOR (Prime and sub) must submit (through the prime CONTRACTOR) certified
payrolls for each week from the time the project begins through completion. Certified payrolls must
be numbered sequentially and submitted on a weekly basis whether or not work was performed. If
no work was performed, CONTRACTOR shall note this on the payroll.

14. PREFERENCE: CONTRACTOR agrees to give preference to the employment of bona fide
Montana residents in compliance with MCA 18-2-403 (1). Pursuant to MCA 18-2-409, except for
projects involving the expenditure of federal aid funds or where residency preference laws are
specifically prohibited by federal law, the CONTRACTOR shall ensure that at least 50% of the
workers of the CONTRACTOR (including workers employed by subcontractors) working on the
project shall be bona fide Montana Residents.

15. PLACE OF PERFORMANCE, CONSTRUCTION, AND VENUE: Performance of this Contractisin
Yellowstone County, Montana and venue for any litigation arising from performance of this Contract
is the 13" Judicial District Court, Yellowstone County, Montana. This Contract shall be governed by
the laws of the State of Montana.

16. ATTORNEY FEES: In the event of litigation between CONTRACTOR and COUNTY, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reimbursement of court costs and reasonable attorney fees by the non-
prevailing party.

17. SUSPENSION: Without terminating this Contract, COUNTY may suspend CONTRACTOR’s
services following written notice. On the suspension date specified in the notice, CONTRACTOR
shall have ceased its services in an orderly manner. CONTRACTOR shall be reimbursed for all
reasonable costs incurred and unpaid for services rendered through the suspension date specified
in the notice, but in no case will CONTRACTOR be paid for services rendered after the date of such
suspension. If resumption of CONTRACTOR’s services requires any waiver or change in this



Contract, any such waiver or change shall require the written agreement of all parties, and the
writing shall be attached as an addendum to this Contract.

18. TERMINATION: COUNTY reserves the right to terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, at any
time by providing thirty (30) days written notice to CONTRACTOR. On the termination date specified
in the notice, CONTRACTOR shall have ceased its services in an orderly manner. If a new contractor
is retained to, or COUNTY will itself complete the services, CONTRACTOR will fully cooperate with
COUNTY in preparing the new contractor or COUNTY to take over completion of services on the
specified termination date. CONTRACTOR will be reimbursed for all reasonable costs incurred and
unpaid for services rendered in conformance with this Contract through the date of termination
specified in COUNTY’s notice to CONTRACTOR. In no case will CONTRACTOR be paid for services
rendered after the date of termination.

In the event of a material breach of this Contract by COUNTY, the CONTRACTOR shall have the right
to terminate this Contract thirty (30) days after written notice to COUNTY specifying such material
breach, unless COUNTY has cured such material breach within said period.

This Contract may be terminated without cause by either party. In that event, the party seeking to
terminate this Contract must give ninety (90) days written notice to the other party of the intent to
terminate the Contract.

In witness whereof, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR have signed this Contract in duplicate. One
counterpart each will be delivered to COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. All portions of the Contract
Documents have been signed, initialed or identified by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR.

This Contract will be effective January 6™, 2026.

COUNTY: CONTRACTOR:
Yellowstone County Bauer Construction, Inc.
Billings, MT 59101 Billings, MT 59101

Mark Morse, Chair Houston Bauer

Board of County Commissioners Owner

ATTEST:

Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder



Exhibit A - Event Dates for Phasing Work

Below is a list of available dates that CONTRACTOR will have access to work on the renovation of
the skybox suites.

January 5" -9™": OPEN
January 10" - EVENT
January 12" - 15": OPEN
January 16" - 18": EVENT
January 19" -23: OPEN
January 26 - 29'": OPEN
January 30"": EVENT
February 2" —5%: OPEN
February 6" - 8": EVENT
February 9" —12%": OPEN
February 13"": EVENT
February 16" —-19": OPEN
February 23" - 24": OPEN
February 25" - 28": EVENT
March 2" -3 OPEN
March 4" - 7"": EVENT
March 9™ - 10™: OPEN
March 11" - 14": EVENT
March 16" - 19": OPEN
March 20" - 22";: EVENT
March 23" - 26": OPEN
March 27" - 29": EVENT
March 30" - 31%: OPEN



B.O.C.C. Regular

Meeting Date: 01/06/2026

Title: BOND FOR LOST WARRANT
Submitted For: Stoney Field, Metra General Manager
Submitted By: Charis Krank, Accounting Assistant

TOPIC:
Bond for Lot Warrant

BACKGROUND:
Bond for Lost Warrant on lost/stale dated check

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve Reissue

Attachments
Bond for Lost Warrant MT #24193




BOND FOR LOST WARRANT

On June 13, 2025 Yellowstone County issued a warrant numbered 24193 to
MADISON OSTERHOUT (Principal) in the amount of $257.5Q0 . The warrant was drawn

in payment of BATH FITTER 25 MT FAIR MKT VNDR REFUND . Principal now attests that the warrant
has been lost or destroyed, and it has undertaken a diligent search but has been unable to recover
the warrant. Moreover, Principal has not received payment on the claim. Therefore, Principal has
requested that Yellowstone County issue a duplicate warrant in the same sum of $257.50 to
replace the lost or destroyed warrant.

WHEREFORE, Principal agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Yellowstone County and its officers
from all loss, costs, or damages incurred as a result of issuing the duplicate warrant, should
Yellowstone County issue a duplicate warrant, and agrees to release any and all claims that principal

claim. Principal also agrees to pay to any person entitled to receive payment under the original
warrant, as the lawful holder of the original warrant, all monies received upon the duplicate warrant.

Further, Principal agrees to bind itself, its heirs, assigns, executors, administrators, successors and
assigns, jointly and severally, for twice the amount of the original warrant as required by M.C.A. 7-7-
2104 (2), which is $___515.00 and may be enforced in the event the Principal cashes both the
original warrant and the replacement warrant. In addition, Principal agrees to pay reasonable
zitorney’s fees, and to cover all losses, damages, and other costs incurred by Yellowstone County in
erforcing its rights under this bond.

\aduaren Onlchgat

Frincipal Signature

201 S 300 W

Mailing Address for replacement check

Sandy) , UT. 34010

City, State Zip |

may have against Yellowstone County now or in the future as related to payment of the above stated

Stata of ] —\é@k\c\r@—- 3 -
- . (seal/stamp)
County of (\OA W (VY )
S AL | .
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this day of L, ZOLS,
o Ao, Dy itense 2122063005
[ ~ (NOTARLA ;
A LA
Nl siofatife \&— ~— ’ 5

EMANUEL CAMACHO
Notary Public - State of ldaho
Commission Number 20181257
My Commission Expires Aug 8, 2030

APPROVED:

Chair, Board of County Commissioners Date

Replaced with warrant # , dated (completed by County)




B.O.C.C. Regular

Meeting Date: 01/06/2026

Title: Contract Amendment No. 4 - YSC & DOC
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Contract Amendment No. 4 - YSC & DOC

BACKGROUND:
See Attached

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve or Deny

Attachments
Contract Amendment No. 4 - YSC & DOC




Docusign Envelope ID: 9DCDB801-9842-457F-8BAD-EAE052913F74

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 4
TED LECHNER YOUTH SERVICES CENTER
CONTRACT NO. COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF

This CONTRACT AMENDMENT No. 4 amends the above-referenced Contract between the State of
Montana, Department of Corrections (State), whose address and phone number are P.O. Box
201301, 5 South Last Chance Gulch, Helena, MT 59620-1301, 406-444-3930 and Ted Lechner
Youth Services Center (Contractor), whose address and phone number are 410 South 26th Street,
Billings, MT 59101, (406) 256-6826.

This Contract is amended as follows:
1) Under the section entitled Duration of the Contract, the parties mutually agree to extend

this Contract from October 1, 2025, through September 30, 2026, per the terms, conditions,
and prices agreed upon. This is the 4% renewal, 5" year of the Contract.

Except as modified above, all other terms and conditions of Contract No. COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-
PHCF including Amendment No.s 1 through 3 remain unchanged.

STATE OF MONTANA Yellowstone County Commission — On
behalf

Montana Department of Corrections Of Ted Lechner Youth Services Center

5 S. Last Chance Guich 410 South 26th Street

Helena, MT 59601 Billings, MT 59101

BY- BY: MARK MORSE
Jeni Nolin Mark Morse, Chairman

Contract & Procurement Manager Yellowstone County Commission

(Signature) (Signature)

DATE: DATE:

Lega) Approval:

Pl Marginak 12/29/2025
Phoebe Marcinek, Legal Counsel
Office of Legal Services (Date)

Approved as to Form:
Daw. Kittur 12/29/2025

uuuuuuuuuuuuuu

Dan Ritter, Procurement Agent (Date)
Department of Corrections

Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
Contract No.: COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF Amd #4
Contracting Authority: § 18-4-132 MCA



Docusign Envelope ID: 9DCDB801-9842-457F-8BAD-EAE052913F74

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 3
TED LECHNER YOUTH SERVICES CENTER
CONTRACT NO. COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF

This CONTRACT AMENDMENT No. 3 amends the above-referenced Contract between the State of

Montana, Department of Corrections (State), whose address and phone number are P.O. Box
201301, 5 South Last Chance Gulch, Helena, MT 59620-1301, 406-444-3930 and Ted Lechner
Youth Services Center (Contractor), whose address and phone number are 410 South 26th Street,

Billings, MT 59101, (406) 256-6826.

This Contract is amended as follows:

1) Under the section entitled Effective Date, Duration, and Renewal, the parties mutually

agree to extend this Contract from October 1, 2024, date, through September 30, 2025 per
the terms, conditions, and prices agreed upon. This is the third renewal, fourth year of the

Contract.

Except as modified above, all other terms and conditions of Contract No. COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-

PHCF, including Amendment #1 & #2 remain unchanged.

STATE OF MONTANA

Montana Department of Corrections
5 S. Last Chance Gulch
Helena, MT 59601

Steve Ray

BY:

Steve Ray, Superintendent,
Pine Hills Correctional Facility

Yellowstone County Commission — On
behalf
Of Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
410 South 26th Street
Billings, MT 59101

John Ostlund

BY:

John Ostlund, Chairman
Yellowstone County Commission

[:é{L“L,Kaq [:;0&&% ﬂ%#UMA4L
(Signature) (Signature)
11/14/2024 11/14/202
DATE: DATE; /1429
Legal Approval:
M{q onker 11/14/2024

AB13,

arty Yonker, Legal Counsel
Legal Services Bureau

Approved as to Form:



Docusign Envelope ID: 9DCDB801-9842-457F-8BAD-EAE052913F74

Signed by:
Do, Kitor 11/14/2024
430F462AFCCD4EA...
Dan Ritter, Procurement Agent (Date)

Department of Corrections



Docusign Envelope ID: 9DCDB801-9842-457F-8BAD-EAE052913F74

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 2
TED LECHNER YOUTH SERVICES CENTER
CONTRACT NO. COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF

This CONTRACT AMENDMENT No. 2 amends the above-referenced Contract between the State of
Montana, Department of Corrections (State), whose address and phone number are P.O. Box 201301, 5
South Last Chance Gulch, Helena, MT 59620-1301, 406-444-3930 and Ted Lechner Youth Services Center,
whose address and phone number are 410 South 26™ Street, Billings, MT 59101, (406) 256-6826.

This Contract is amended for the following purpose(s) (new language underlined, deleted language interlined):

1)

2)

In accordance with Section 1, of the above-referenced Contract, entitled Effective Date, Duration,
and Renewal, parties mutually agree to extend this Contract for the period October 1, 2023, through
September 30, 2024, per the terms, conditions, and prices agreed upon. This is the 2™ renewal, 3™
year of the Contract. This Contract, including any renewals, may not exceed a total of seven (7)
years.

In accordance with Section 7, of the above-referenced Contract, entitled Defense,
Indemnification/Hold Harmless, parties mutually agree to replace the previously agreed-upon
language with the language as shown below:

7. DEFENSE, INDEMNIFICATION / HOLD HARMLESS

Contractor shall protect, defend, indemnify, and save harmless the State, its elected and appointed
officials, agents, and employees, while acting within the scope of their duties as such, from and
against all claims, liabilities, demands, causes of action, judgments, and losses, including all costs of
defense and reasonable attorney fees, arising in favor of or asserted by Contractor’s employees and
agents, its subcontractors, its subcontractor’s employees and agents, or third parties on account of
property damage, personal injury, bodily injury, death, or financial or other loss of any kind that in
any way, directly or indirectly, arise or allegedly arise out of or in connection with this Contract.

Except as modified above, all other terms and conditions of Contract No. COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF,

including Amendment #1, remain unchanged.

Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
Contract # COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF, Amendment #2
Contracting Authority: § 18-4-132 MCA

Page 1



Docusign Envelope ID: 9DCDB801-9842-457F-8BAD-EAE052913F74

STATE OF MONTANA Yellowstone County Commission — On behalf
Montana Department of Corrections Of Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
5 S. Last Chance Gulch 410 South 26 Street
Helena, MT 59601 Billings, MT 59101

DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
R{'UM/ KN'I 10/12/2023 ﬁb{,u/\, &SH,W/\,A 10/12/2023
Steve ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁfﬁerimendem (Date) John Ostlund, Chairman (Date)
Pine Hills Correctional Facility Yellowstone County Commission

Approved as to Form:

DocuSigned by:

ﬂs&iu? Salmon. 10/12/2023

Ashley Salmon, Contracts Officer (Date)
Financial Services Bureau

Approved as to Legal Content:

DocuSigned by:

J‘W”‘ ”":’77” 10/12/2023

Z890DE3YT6094637

Iryna O’Connor, Legal Counsel (Date)
Legal Services Bureau

Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
Contract # COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF, Amendment #2
Contracting Authority: § 18-4-132 MCA

Page 2



Docusign Envelope ID: 9DCDB801-9842-457F-8BAD-EAE052913F74

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 1
TED LECHNER YOUTH SERVICES CENTER
CONTRACT NO. COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF

This CONTRACT AMENDMENT No.1 amends the above-referenced contract between the State of Montana,
Department of Corrections (State), whose address and phone number are P.O. Box 201301, 5 South Last
Chance Gulch, Helena, MT 59620-1301, 406-444-3930 and Ted Lechner Youth Services Center, (TLYSC),
whose address and phone number are 410 South 26t Street, Billings, MT 59101, (406) 256-6826. This Contract
is amended for the following purpose(s):

1)

2)

In accordance with Section 3, of the above-referenced contract, entitled Effective Date, Duration,
and Renewal, parties mutually agree to extend this Contract for the period October 1, 2022, through
September 30, 2023, per the terms, conditions, and prices agreed upon. This is the 1% renewal, 2"
year of the Contract. This Contract, including any renewals, may not exceed a total of seven (7)
years.

In accordance with Section 12, of the above-referenced contract, entitled Compliance with Laws,
parties mutually agree to replace the previously agreed-upon language with the language as shown
below:

12. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

12.1  Applicable Laws. TLYSC shall, in performance of work under this Contract, fully
comply with all applicable federal, state, or local laws, rules, regulations, and executive orders
including but not limited to, the Montana Human Rights Act, the Equal Pay Act of 1963, the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. TLYSC is the employer for the purpose of
providing healthcare benefits and paying any applicable penalties, fees and taxes under the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act 42 U.S.C. § 18001 et seq. TLYSC will comply with the Prison
Rape Elimination Act 34 U.S.C. § 30301 et seq., the Prison Rape Elimination Act final rule 28 CFR
Part 115, and MDOC Policy 1.1.17, Prison Rape Elimination Act to include incident reporting. State
has a zero-tolerance policy as to incidents of sexual assault/rape or sexual misconduct in its
correctional facilities or premises. TLYSC is referred to § 45-5-501 MCA. Any subletting or
subcontracting by TLYSC subjects subcontractors to the same provisions. In accordance with § 49-
3-207, MCA, and State of Montana Executive Order No. 04-2016, TLYSC agrees that the hiring of
persons to perform this Contract will be made on the basis of merit and qualifications and there will
be no discrimination based on race, color, sex, pregnancy, childbirth or medical conditions related to
pregnancy or childbirth, political or religious affiliation or ideas, culture, creed, social origin or
condition, genetic information, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin,
ancestry, age, disability, military service or veteran status, or marital status by the persons
performing this Contract.

12.2  Affordable Care Act. The Affordable Care Act requires TLYSC, if TLYSC is an
applicable large employer under the ACA, to provide healthcare coverage for its employees who
provide services for the State and work for 30 or more hours per week. This coverage must also
cover the eligible employee’s dependents under the age of 26. The coverage must (a) meet the
minimum essential coverage, minimum value, and affordability requirements of the employer

Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
Contract # COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF, Amendment #1
Contracting Authority: § 18-4-132 MCA

Page 1



Docusign Envelope ID: 9DCDB801-9842-457F-8BAD-EAE052913F74

responsibility provisions under Section 4980H of the Code (ACA), and (b) otherwise satisfy the
requirements of the Code § 4980H (ACA).

Except as modified above, all other terms and conditions of Contract No. COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF,
remain unchanged.

STATE OF MONTANA Yellowstone County

Montana Department of Corrections On behalf of Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
5 S. Last Chance Gulch FEDERAL ID # 81-6001449

Helena, MT 59601

DocuSigned by:

DocuSigned by:
(—S 8/9/2022 L, 8/9/2022

ECD3 89FE4 A TIETOAEABE 25

ay, guperlntendent (Date) Donald Jones, Chairman (Date)
Plne Hllls Correction Facility Yellowstone County Commission

Approved as to Form:

DocuSigned by:

Ay Salmon. 8/4/2022
Asﬁ Y 49i1E’f1901’1 Contracts Officer (Date)

F1nanc1a1 Services Bureau

Approved as to Legal Content:

DocuSigned by:
[ a7 Vgl :
( ) 3 8/4/2022

4+E9+5492B2 744~

Molenda McCarty, Legal Counsel (Date)
Legal Services Bureau

Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
Contract # COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF, Amendment #1
Contracting Authority: § 18-4-132 MCA

Page 2



Docusign Envelope ID: 9DCDB801-9842-457F-8BAD-EAE052913F74

TED LECHNER YOUTH SERVICES CENTER REIMBURSEMENT CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT (COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF) is made and entered into by and between the
Department of Corrections, 5 S. Last Chance Gulch, Helena, Montana 59601 hereinafter referred to as (State),
and Ted Lechner Youth Services Center, 410 South 26™ Street, Billings, MT 59101, hereinafter referred to as
(TLYSC).

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained
in this Contract, State and TLYSC agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

Confinement means the Youth Detainee is placed in a Youth Detention Facility and provided with
services in accordance with the TLYSC’s license.

Day means the 24-hour period (12:00 a.m. to 12:00 midnight) that is represented as one of the seven
designated days of the week.

Partial Day means any portion of a day that is 12 hours or less.

Youth Detention Facility means a facility established and maintained by an appropriate entity for the
purpose of confining arrested youth or youth sentenced to the detention center.

Youth Detainee means a person who is confined in a Youth Detention Facility.

2. PURPOSE & DUTIES

TLYSC agrees to provide youth detention services to youth who are detained by Youth Court personnel
pending a revocation of conditional release in accordance with § 52-5-128, MCA, upon presentation by an agent
of Youth Court of a warrant to detain the youth,

3. DURATION OF THE CONTRACT

3.1 Term. This Contract shall be in effect October 1, 2021 and terminate on September 30, 2022
unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of this Contract in Section 3.3.

3.2 Contract Renewal, State may renew this Contract under its then-existing terms and conditions
(subject to potential cost adjustments described below in section 4) in one (1)-year intervals, or any interval that
is advantageous to State. This Contract, including any renewals, may not exceed a total of seven (7) years.

3.3 Termination, Either party may terminate this Contract, without cause, upon 30 days written
notice to the liaisons identified in Section 6 of this Contract.

34  Modification and Assignability. This Contract contains the entire Contract between the parties
and no statements, promises, or inducements made by either party, or agents of either party, that are not
contained in or authorized by this written Contract, are valid or binding. This Contract may not be enlarged,
modified, or altered except upon written agreement of all the parties. Subcontractors and public or private
agents of TLYSC are also bound by the terms of this Contract and TLYSC will not assign this Contract,

Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
Contract # COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF
Contracting Authority: § 18-4-132 MCA

Page 1



Docusign Envelope ID: 9DCDB801-9842-457F-8BAD-EAE052913F74

4. COMPENSATION

4.1 Establishment of Daily Per Diem Rate. TLYSC agrees that the “costs of reasonable
confinement” established herein are based on actual, reasonable costs and are exclusive of capital construction
costs in accordance with § 7-32-2242(2), MCA.

4.2  Payment of Daily Per Diem Rate. State agrees to pay TLYSC a daily per diem rate of two
hundred thirty-five and 00/100 Dollars ($235.00) per day for each Youth Detainee confined at TLYSC and who
is the financial responsibility of State.

4.3  Transfer of Detainees. TLYSC shall obtain prior approval from State to transfer a Youth
Detainee to another Youth Detention Facility. TLYSC can only transfer a Youth Detainee to a State contracted
Youth Detention Facility. If TLYSC transfers a Youth Detainee to another Youth Detention Facility, State shall
reimburse each facility in accordance with their respective Detention Facility Reimbursement Contract entered
into with State.

4.4  Billing. On a monthly basis, TLYSC shall furnish State with an itemized statement specifying
the name, date of birth, and dates of confinement of each Youth Detainee whose confinement expenses are the
responsibility of State. TLYSC agrees to furnish a separate itemized statement for medical expenses that are the
responsibility of State, as provided by this Contract. State agrees to provide direct payment to the medical
service provider, if requested to do so by TLYSC.

5 REIMBURSEMENT

5.1 _ Confinement. State will pay TLYSC the daily per diem rate set forth in this Contract for each
day of confinement. Reimbursement will include the first day of confinement (as defined in Section 1. herein)
but will not include the last day of confinement when the Youth Detainee is released/transferred from the
custody of TLYSC.

5.2 Medication, Medical Services and Hospitalization. Under the terms of this Contract, State will
pay medical costs of Youth Detainees, who are the responsibility of the State and confined in TLYSC.

5.2.1 .TLYSC agrees to provide Youth Detainees with emergency medical treatment in
accordance with acceptable standards of practice. The determination to provide a Youth Detainee with
medication, medical services, or hospitalization shall be at the discretion of TLYSC’s qualified healthcare
professionals.

5.2.2 . Whenever a Youth Detainee requires medication, outside medical services, or
hospitalization, medical expenses shall be the responsibility of State. Prior to providing non-emergency medical
services for Youth Detainees, TLYSC shall obtain prior authorization from State’s Clinical Services Bureau
(CSB). Costs for services that have not had prior authorization will be the responsibility of TLYSC. Emergency
care may be provided without prior authorization. However, State’s CSB must be notified by the next business
day to provide information regarding the nature of the illness, the type of treatment provided, and the estimated
length of treatment. Notifications should be submitted to cormedical@mt.gov. In the event a parent or legal
guardian cannot be reached to provide consent for emergency services, the Pine Hills Correctional Facility
(PHCF) Superintendent or designee may consent to necessary medical treatment for the youth pursuant to

Montana Code Annotated § 52-5-105.

5.2.3 . All medical bills received are required to be submitted to corbilling@mt.gov and will be

reimbursed at Medicaid rates.

Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
Contract # COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF
Contracting Authority: § 18-4-132 MCA

Page 2



Docusign Envelope ID: 9DCDB801-9842-457F-8BAD-EAE052913F74

5.2.4 . In the event a Youth Detainee requires hospitalization and State is unable to provide on-

site supervision, TLYSC agrees to provide appropriate custodial staff to supervise the Youth Detainee until
release from detention status. State agrees to reimburse TLYSC for the wages of custodial staff.

5.2.5 . When possible, medications should be ordered through State’s contracted
pharmaceutical company. State encourages TLYSC to reference the MT DOC Medication Formulary when
possible.

6. LIAISON

6.1. Contract Liaisons. All project management and coordination on State’s behalf must be through
a single point of contact designated as State’s liaison. Contractor shall designate a liaison that will provide the
single point of contact for management and coordination of Contractor’s work. All work performed under this
Contract must be coordinated between State’s liaison and Contractor’s liaison.

Teri Young is State’s Liaison Valarie Weber is Contractor’s liaison
4 N. Haynes Liaison

Miles City, MT 59301 410 South 26" Street

(406) 233-2266 Billings, MT 59101

tyoung@mt.gov (406) 256-6825

vweber(@yellowstonecountymt.gov

6.2 Contract Manager. State’s Contract Manager identified below is State’s single point of contact
and shall perform all contract management on State’s behalf. Written notices, requests, complaints, or any other
issues regarding this Contract should be directed to State’s Contract Manager.

Kristi L. Hernandez is State’s Contract Manager
5 S. Last Chance Gulch

Helena, MT 59601

(406) 444-9649

kristi.hernandez(@mt.gov

6.3 Notifications. State’s liaison and Contractor’s liaison may be changed by written notice to the
other party. Written notices, requests, or complaints must first be directed to the liaison. Notice may be
provided by personal service, email, mail, or facsimile. If notice is provided by personal service, email, or
facsimile, the notice is effective upon receipt; if notice is provided by mail, the notice is effective on the third
business day after mailing.

T INDEMNIFICATION

TLYSC shall protect, defend, indemnify, and save harmless State, its elected and appointed officials, agents,
and employees, while acting within the scope of their duties as such, from and against all claims, liabilities,
demands, causes of action, judgments, and losses, including all costs of defense and reasonable attorney fees,
anising in favor of or asserted by TLYSC’s employees and agents, its subcontractors, its subcontractor’s
employees and agents, or third parties on account of property damage, personal injury, bodily injury, death, or
financial or other loss of any kind that in any way, directly or indirectly, arise or allegedly arise out of or in
connection with this Contract.

Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
Contract # COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF
Contracting Authority: § 18-4-132 MCA

Page 3



Docusign Envelope ID: 9DCDB801-9842-457F-8BAD-EAE052913F74

TLYSC waives all claims, demands, causes of action, and recourse against TLYSC, including claims of
contribution or indemnity, arising in favor of TLYSC on account of property damage, personal injury, bodily
injury, death, or financial or other loss of any kind that in any way, directly or indirectly, arise or allegedly arise
out of or in connection with this Contract.

8. ACCESS AND RETENTION OF RECORDS

TLYSC agrees to provide State, the Legislative Auditor, or their authorized agents with access to any records
necessary to determine Contract compliance. TLYSC agrees to create and retain records supporting the services
rendered for a period of eight (8) years after either the completion date of the Contract or the conclusion of any
claim, litigation, or exception relating to the Contract taken by the State of Montana or third party.

9. VENUE

This Contract is governed by the laws of Montana. The parties agree that any litigation arising from this
Contract must be brought to the First Judicial District in and for the County of Lewis and Clark, State of
Montana, and each party shall pay its own costs and attorney fees, except as set forth in Section 7,
Indemmnification.

10. REQUIRED INSURANCE

10.1 _ General Requirements. TLYSC shall maintain for the duration of this Contract, at its cost and
expense, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, including contractual liability,
which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work by Contractor, agents, employees,
representatives, assigns, or subcontractors. This insurance shall cover such claims as may be caused by any
negligent act or omission.

10.2 __Primary Insurance. TLYSC’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to
State, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers and shall apply separately to each project or location.
Any msurance or self-insurance maintained by State, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be
excess of TLYSC’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

10.3 _ Specific Requirements for Commercial General Liability, TLYSC shall purchase and
maintain occurrence coverage with combined single limits for bodily injury, personal injury, and property
damage of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggrepate per year to cover such claims as may be caused
by any act, omission, or negligence of TLYSC or its officers, agents, representatives, assigns, or subcontractors.

State, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered and listed as additional insureds for
liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of TLYSC, including the insured’s general
supervision of Contractor, products, and completed operations, and the premises owned, leased, occupied, or
used.

10.4__ Specific Requirements for Automobile Liability. TLYSC shall purchase and maintain
coverage with split limits of $500,000 per person (personal injury), $1.000,000 per accident occurrence
(personal injury), and $100,000 per accident occurrence (property damage), OR combined single limits of
$1,000.000 per occurrence, to cover such claims as may be caused by any act, omission, or negligence of
Contractor or its officers, agents, representatives, assigns, or subcontractors.

Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
Contract # COR-INTRGV-2022.0436-PHCF
Contracting Authority: § 18-4-132 MCA

Page 4



Docusign Envelope ID: 9DCDB801-9842-457F-8BAD-EAE052913F74

State, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered and listed as additional insureds for
automobiles leased, owned, or borrowed by TLYSC.

10.5 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions, Any deductible or self-insured retention must be
declared to and approved by State. At the request of State either: (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such
deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects State, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers; or (2) at
the expense of TLYSC, TLYSC shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations,
claims administration, and defense expenses.

10.6 _ Certificate of Insurance/Endorsements. A certificate of insurance from an insurer with a
Best’s rating of no less than A- indicating compliance with the required coverages has been received by
Department of Corrections, P.O. Box 201301, 3 8. Last Chance Gulch, Helena, MT 59620-1301. The
certificates must name the State of Montana as certificate holder and Contractor shall provide copies of
additional insured endorsements required by Contractor’s commercial general liability and automobile liability
policies. Contractor must notify State immediately of any material change in insurance coverage, such as
changes in limits, coverages, change in status of policy, etc. State reserves the right to require complete copies
of insurance policies at all times.

10.7 Recommended Cyber/Data Information Security Insurance. TLYSC acknowledges
responsibility for loss or unauthorized acquisition of personal information it holds such as social security
numbers, credit card numbers, financial account information, or other information that uniquely identifies an
individual and may be of a sensitive nature in accordance with § 2-6-1501, MCA through § 2-6-1503, MCA. In
absence of insurance coverage specific to this type of coverage, Contract assumes personal liability for any such
information breaches.

11. COMPLIANCE WITH WORKERS’ COMPENSATION ACT

TLYSC shall comply with the provisions of the Montana Workers” Compensation Act while performing work
for State of Montana in accordance with §§ 39-71-401, 39-71-405, and 39-71-417, MCA. Proof of compliance
must be in the form of workers’ compensation insurance, an independent contractor’s exemption, or
documentation of corporate officer status. Neither TLYSC nor its employees are State employees. This
insurance/exemption must be valid for the entire Contract term and any renewal. Upon expiration, a renewal
document must be sent to Department of Corrections, P.O. Box 201301, 5 S. Last Chance Gulch, Helena, MT
59620-1301.

12. COMPLIANCE WITH LLAWS

TLYSC shall, in performance of work under this Contract, fully comply with all applicable federal, state, or
local laws, rules, regulations, and executive orders including but not limited to, the Montana Human Rights Act,
the Equal Pay Act of 1963, the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, TLYSC is the employer for
the purpose of providing healthcare benefits and paying any applicable penalties, fees and taxes under the
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act 42 U.S.C. § 18001 et seq. TLYSC will comply with the Prison Rape
Elimination Act 34 U.S.C. § 30301 et seq., the Prison Rape Elimination Act final rule 28 CFR Part 115, MDOC
Policy 1.1.17, Prison Rape Elimination Act, and ACCD 1.3.1400 PREA to include incident reporting. TLYSC
shall establish a zero-tolerance policy to incidents of sexual assault/rape or sexual misconduct. TLYSC is
referred to § 45-5-501, MCA. Any subletting or subcontracting by TLYSC subjects subcontractors to the same
provisions. In accordance with § 49-3-207, MCA, and State of Montana Executive Order No. 04-2016, TLYSC
agrees that the hiring of persons to perform this Contract will be made on the basis of merit and qualifications

Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
Contract # COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF
Contracting Authority: § 18-4-132 MCA

Page 5



Docusign Envelope ID: 9DCDB801-9842-457F-8BAD-EAE052913F74

and there will be no discrimination based on race, color, sex, pregnancy, childbirth or medical conditions related
to pregnancy or childbirth, political or religious affiliation or ideas, culture, creed, social origin or condition,
genetic information, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin, ancestry, age, disability,
military service or veteran status, or marital status by the persons performing this Contract.

12.1 Affordable Care Act. The Affordable Care Act requires a Contractor, if Contractor is an
applicable large employer under the ACA, to provide healthcare coverage for its employees who provide
services for the State and work for 30 or more hours per week. This coverage must also cover the eligible
employee’s dependents under the age of 26. The coverage must (a) meet the minimum essential coverage,

minimum value, and affordability requirements of the employer responsibility provisions under Section 4980H
of the Code (ACA), and (b) otherwise satisfy the requirements of the Code § 4980H (ACA).

13. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
13.1 . There shall be no separate legal entity created as a result of this Contract.

13.2 . This Contract will not result in the acquisition of property requiring disposal upon termination
of the Contract.

13.3 . The above-stated provisions constitute the entire Contract between the parties hereto.

STATE OF MONTANA YELLOWSTONE COUNTY
Montana Department of Corrections On behalf of TLYSC

5 8. Last Chance Gulch

Helena, MT 59601

wfﬁ&c 3-1b-22_

Steve Ray, Superintendent (Date) /J;.)onald Jones, Chﬁ’irman (Date)
Pine Hills Correction Facility Yellowstone County Commission

Approved as to Form:

Kristi L. Hernandez, Contracts Officer (Date)
Department of Corrections

Approved as to Legal Content:

Molenda McCarty, Legal Counsel (Date)
Department of Corrections

Ted Lechner Youth Services Center
Contract # COR-INTRGV-2022-0436-PHCF
Contracting Authority: § 18-4-132 MCA

Page 6



B.O.C.C. Regular

Meeting Date: 01/06/2026

Title: PARS

Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:

PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - County Attorney - 1 Appointment, 6 Salary & Other; Detention
Facility - 1 Appointment; Sheriff's Office - 1 Salary & Other

BACKGROUND:
See attached.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve.

Attachments

PARS



@BEME

JOqUIB

W aeud

sAo01ddesiq

UOHIOY SI3UOISSIWIWO )

W10 UOIIDY |9UU0SIad/a4IH

JAoIday

i€ sg/egrel

85vZ$
ajey Aed

Jeinbay awi|-ing

adAl gor

£9°9 Se/ve/ey

S3INOr
HIAINNIGC

uaIo uIASY

SONVNI4

S30dNOS3Y NVIANH

sjeaoaddy

uosing  seoeidal LLL00LLLY ZZLL0ET

090¢€

#ss8(3 gor

SJUaLIWOD)

V/N

UBISIAICE

23130 sAsuwiony Ajunod

juswinedag

(d) 10jeUIpIOO) v671L9€9
SSSUHM WIDIA Cll ucsiag
sseis gor
(090€) (d) 1030UIPICOD
€££00520C SSOUUA WADIA
#boy suH sligI3( uolisod
uonew.oju] aliH
f
SQUIODDA d140]
ssfojdwsg
uoneuwuojuj aakojdwg
6207 ¥2 230
Q3AI303Y oboj 18hojdwiz

218UOIBSILIOY AJUNOY) BUOISMOFOA



aquISI

=T \gn L

o aey)

D>O.—QQQm_Q Aro0Iddy WV S3INOr

UoiOy slauoissiwio ) o8 ge/eT/Tl d34INNAr
AV

Sv'8 Se/ee/el

9¢/s/L

2egsiiH

JASR 74
218y Aeg

Jeinbay swi|-|n4
adA) qor

W10 UOIY |dUUO0SIad/alIH

ua|lI9 uIASY

3ONVNIS

S30dNOSIY NVYIANH

sjenoiddy

314 M3IN :sedejday

%00l @ L1'0020Z¥"'9€L'00ET :Buipuny

SUSWIWOD

Ay|1oe4 uonusiag

UoISIAIC

92140 S 48ys

0605 uswedag
#SSB|D qor
66176159
(@) 192140 uonuslaqg Ql uosiag
sse|D gor
(0609)
¥1£005202 (@) 192130 uopualaQ
#bay any sjie}a@ uojisod
uonew.oju| aliH
1aybneg ejheys
saAojdwz
uonewJojul aakojdwg
Aojdwigre
Q3AI303Y oBol soheiduTze

$10U0iSSjLWOY AJUNOY BUOISMOKO A



€1/20 PIsIAI POIUSp[03 - jusunredacy

uid — 10PNy
@Eoz ATeued — s30MOSaY UBWINE]

[BUISLIO - 19PI009Y 29 NIS[D

% IOQUISIN [1014%d U1 parsjus aje(y
rm HEU _

oA0Iddesi(] sAo1ady
UONOY S JOUOISSTUIIO))

SUBUOY) 'Y

Aeq /101 Qg are(q I030911(]
ACT STHCTT IR 7o)
"
V4 SHON -910NL
:90UBUL] :$90IN0S3Y UBWINY
(A (NiREIN
e PeoH Jusunreda/[RISIIO PAIod[T
-~ - Rz )2 »u“ —
|m. \N g 2 N ¢ .\ f\\V\\ /
T unoooy dg U1 - - -
W00y MON )\ FURRd — \\\ - OO\ Y- e\ \ORE :Surpung
<
- “UOIJBOIJISSB[0Y /,/wZA\»f)\ﬂﬁV\ TV Rowwg A ey
T uonowa(J T UONISOJ Pajespuyg MaN
QUIBN
— -I9ysueI], T uonisod sooeidoy
T :uonowoIg T ‘Il [BUOSEBIS
- UOTJRUTULID |, T ouwny ped dws g,
l oy g dwa
ISy
S 1b7Ch w — L
OITH MAN T ULy [[ng Iemsoy
/Jn//n/ KS.JDJ :[qedddy se o9yD
Q/\u O\ 2 < §Aees 10 :oSuRyD) AN
hs /@ﬁhou f QA g bﬂmm ﬂﬁ& 1D /\.u/\ﬂ)\un;u//))w;,. Q) DN /NL/« ,/J P[], us1m))
NS \ % \ \ -91e(J 2ATOYIH DVIT2Q TN eueN
$95Ueqo [aunos1ed papuswwosas 10§ Jusunredsp Sunentur oga Aq pa3e[dwos 9q 01 SI | UOI30aS
I @oydg
LIOdTI NOILDV TANNOSIHAd

AINNOD INOLSMOTTAX



A A ) XV Y/
: 2 KUe JI ‘S]USUIUION)/MIIASY 1019911 Teul
SHG YT o ey saprg9 A O/MOIARY 1019911 F0UEUL]

"LT0T [Mun a3ueyo jou [im Arefes Asutony Kjuno) syJ 97z ut 9sIel B 03 PO[IIIUd
3q jou [[1m suonisod a1 Jeyy paIopIsu0d pajosfas segejusolad oy ‘suonisod JuswoSeurw-uou pue juswoFeuew
udamiaq uoneredss e dosy pue sannaduros suonisod ayy desy 0y Pa103[3s o1oM dA0QE sa3eIusdIad oY, "S[RIOIjO

P2303]2 JO saLrefes oty Juias Mme] ey§ Jo uoneotjdde uo paseq 18aK 10110 A19A3 SOSTRL OAIS03I [[1M ‘uonisod
Aswiony Ayunoy) a1y 03 Jejrwis ‘pue A1asSuo Ayunop uoru)-UoN 9AI001 193U0[ OU [[1m suonisod EI=1

# Are[es Lowopny A1unop) ay) Jo 984 e 9q [[im Iosiazadng K1oA00s1(7 2y) Jo Arefes oy,

« Are[es Lowiony Ajuno) o Jo 9,84 1€ 2q [[im Josiatoedng SSOUJIA\ /WIIIDIA 9Y) JO ATefes oy ],
+ A1eTes Kowrony Alunod oy Jo %84 18 9q [[1a Josiatadng 9o1j() [eSe] o Jo Arefes oy |,

* AIeTESs £SUIONY AIUN0D) 9] JO %8S 18 9 [[IM IOJRISIUIUPY 901J( 341 JO Arefes oy,

‘sSuraes Koueoea
uo A1a31e] paseq Ajuioyine 1o3pnq SULSIXS WOy JJSULT) YIM Papuny aq [11a a8ued suyJ, - yoedwy [eosty ¢

"uonualax pue jusm}InIoal

PIM $89500S 131M S183K 10] Aem SIU) U0 U23q aARY SalIe[es siofeuew Aouione oy -opeis Arejes

JUSLIND 3y JO A1US oY 03 Jeanal J0U pue danedwod Aels [[eys Ale[es a Juswaoe[dousweInal uodn
Annadwod Arefes axow suonisod asay) SYBW [[IM PUE JUSISISUOD ST S3RIUIOL) UoHesuaduo)) Auno)

dYp Jo uonoer pue AME)s £q 308 St yorym Arefes Asuiony Kjuno) ayy o) pay saLreres juswoSeuey pasueyd
9q 01 pasu pue aAnNaduIoD Jou 18 suonisod 9sot) 10§ SOLIE[es JULLINO 3y ], *AJjiqisuodsar Jo BaIe Jofew a1y
S& PaljIuapT Ud3q SeY] J1JF0 1O JO SUOISTAIP d[dinu woij jyeis ot Jo suoneredo Kep-03-Aep oy SwrSeuey

‘Kowiony
Kunop 2 Jo Areres oy 03 saLees suonisod asay) Sulky AIefes Jo uoneoIsSL[9a1 Ioy uoneoynsnfoyy ‘g

JudWRBRURIA JJRIS/I0SIAIIANG SSOUILA-WIIOLA GuUswoSeuRy
Jyes/1osiaradng A10A00s1(] JuswaSeuey Jjeis / Josiatedng 2o3( B8] “10jenSIUIWPY 29130 suonisogd |

yRURSEURIA] Jyels Aouli0)3y Ajuno)) aoy aSuey)) Ae[eg 10§ uonLIYHSNL
SNV d 01 wnpuappn



€1/20 pasiAaz POIUSpIOS - Jusunredacy

yuid — roupny
WA ATeued — S90MOSSY UBWNL]
[eUISUIO - 19pI009Y 29 NIS[D
\,\% IOQUIdIN [1014®ed U1 pa1sjus aye(y
w: Treg) |
SA0IAGESI(q 2A0IddYy

UONOY S I9UOISSTUIUIO)) SIUSWWOD) 'H

e Aeq I030911(]
SEF N ) e
20N 910N
190uBUL] :$90IMO0S9Y UBWINL]
7 U0d9g
Aeq PeoY Jusunreda /TR0 PaIod[T
S -T2 \b J&
T umoooy ds T jusdiag -
T JUN0O9Y MAN] QQ\ JuedId  \\\ - O\ - ﬂﬁu/ \OQLE: Surpun,y
- )\«?»AAV\/ ~

- “UONBOIJISSBOY \ <’ a\u X a 5/«&&0
I :uonowa(J T UONISOJ PajesSpnyg maN
QWIEN]
|| :I9fsue1], - uonisod seoejdey
.I :uonowoIg T '9IIH [eUOSBIS
T {UOTJRUTULID T, T uny pedg dwa ],
.l owry g dwo .

l Yy
- oUWy Hed sy
2OIIH MaN l puny (g remSey
:9[qednddy se yd9yD)
10 XA )).\@.JP» :osuRy) SNILL

SO Ve . SR, = :
A AT A Areres - W A 10 B O, YR /J,.\vm ,, ML JuaLm)
N = \ \ \ \ -9re( SAndIH AN O AQA a;r);./vo//_/)./ oweN
sa5ueqo [aunosied papuswiooar 105 1usuntedsp Suneniur ag; Aq pa3edwod 9Qq 01 SI | UOI1393g
PR (JIREIN
LIO0dTI NOILDV TANNOSIId

ALNNOD AINOLSMOTTIAX



’ Ay m\c..\vw\v. NNV qun\
W.M\\Q % d.%\.vv\.v f\u yrrvasn \0. I\ uﬂ@é o) .v Aue J1 SJUAWIWIO))/MIIASY 10J09II(] douRUL]

"LTOT [Mun a3ueyo jou |[im Arefes Astwony Aunop ayy '9z0z ui ssies e 03 papnua
9q j0u J141 suonisod ay) jety paiepisuoo pajoolss soSejussiod oy ‘suonisod juowoSeurw-uou pue juswsSeuew
usamyaq uoneredss e dooy pue sannaduios suonisod oy doay 0 pajosjes azem aAoqe saSejuaolad oy ‘s[eronjo

P3393]2 Jo saLiefes oy Fuias me ajelg jo uonestdde uo Paseq Jeak 15430 A19A9 SISIRI 9412001 {1im ‘uonisod
Aowopy Kuno ayy o3 repiurs ‘pue A11493u07] Ajuno) uorupy-uoyN 9A19031 153U0] ou [[1m suomsod asay Ls

« KIe[es Lowony Kunop) ayy jo %8 18 2q [1im J0SIATdNnG A10A00S1(T o JO Arefes oy

« Areres Aswony Aunop ays Jo %o8% 1€ 3q J1Im Jostatodng ssouyim /o1 ay; yo Krepes oy,
" Arefes Aswony £juno) s jo %81 12 3q [[1m Josiatedng 201y [eSa] oy Jo Arepes oy |,

* ATefes Lsurony Ajunop) ays jo %8 8 9 [[Im I0JenSIUIIPY 901JQ oY Jo Arejes YL

"s3uiaes Aoueoea
uo Ap3re] paseq Luoyine 1038png Sunsixs woyy 1oysuey Pim papuny aq jjim a5ueyd sty - joedwy eosty €

"UONU)AT PUB JUSUFINIOAI

1M §53001S (1M S183K 10] KB ST QUOD U0DQq dARY SaLIE[ES S1oSeuewt Aowione oy, ‘opeid Aejes

JUSLIND Y1 Jo £13uS 3y} 0] Jeal3al J0U pue sannadwoo Ae)s jjeys Arefes o Juswsoejdasususinal uodn
-aanndwos Arefes s1ouw suonisod asayy OB [[IM pUe JUSISISU0D ST 2op1unu0) uonesuadwor) Auno)

4 Jo uonoe pue ayme)s £q 308 st YoM Krejes Lowiony Ayuno) oy 03 pan sarre(es JuswoSeuey -poSueyo
9q 03 paau pue sAnnedwos Jou a1e suonisod asay 10g Sole[es Juaumd oy, “Aujiqrsuodsal jo eoxe sofew oy
S® PayluopT U23q Seyf 90130 N0 JO SUOISIAIP ojdn[nw ol Jyeis ayj Jo suonierado Aep-o3-Aep oyy SuiSeuepy

‘Kowroyny
AunoD oty Jo Arejes sy 03 sovrefes Suomsod asay Suify Arepes jo uopedyIsseioal 0y uoneoynsnf oy 'z

JuswaSeue J3e1g/10s1A10dNg SSUN M -UIOIA quowrsSeuepy
Jyeig/ostatedng £19A0081(] GuowaSeueyy Jjeig /0siatadng o030 [e8T YoensImWpY 201750 suomisog

JmwWISeuey] Jyeis Loutony &yuno) 1o 23uey) Axejeg 10y uogeoynsnp
hxwm (2] s:ﬁ:mmuﬁa



€1/20 pasiAr POIUSpP[0S - juounredacy

‘ >utd — 1o1pny
. 7 QQUISTA] Areued — $90MOSoY UBINL]

[eUISLIO - 19PI099Y 29 NIS[D

% JoqQuISIN [101Aed ur parejus s8]

ey

SAOIddesI(] sA0Iddy
UONOY S JOUOISSTUIWO))

SUSUWO)) Y'H
eq IORaII(] Aeq

) Io0amq
SEF{GT 0T STHCZT UK T
910N 910N
:90uBUL] :$90IM0SaY Uewn ]
A (D EREIS
e PeoH 1usunreds /[eIonIO PoIod[g
52T~ \\V@Sﬁ
T unodoy pdg JUdIa g -

WN000Y MON T\ JUd0I0g W - QO W\ PRSI N {0 & Sutpung
———— P > AFWHNRANA
T “UOTIBOIJISSR[OY . L ; N/ 4/ ‘ .7),c,//.voﬁo

;uonowa(J T UONISOJ Pa1espnyg MoN
QuwreN
- :IQJSUBI], - uonisod seoejdey
T :uor0WoIg T ‘I [RUOSBIS
ll [UONRUTULID Y, T oy peg dwo,
: l wr] g dws ]
p l ISy
- REQ \PSN@, — ‘oW HBd BMSey
ﬁ . ../< — 1OITH MAN T Py g remsay
s e AT )\/J :91qeanddy se yoag))
Q/U & L T\ $ ArEES T 1D :P8%uRyD INLL
T~ .~ A~ T . J\..’ WV /,..) .,ﬁ/y .,‘ NN O mai Y \ ™~ =

N\ O §Awees A 1D VENVOAS SRRSO (. PpIL juerm)
A\ A W\u ﬂ&u . - N —_

Yo 1918 9A09YY TSI T, OSSN -

Sy X N YO
sa5ueyo [sunosied pspuswwooal 103 Jusuredsp Sunentur a3 Aq ps3s[dwod aq 03 SI ] uono9g
RG] IRETN
LIOdTd NOILLDY TANNOSIAd

AINNOD AINOLSMOTTIX



A v ) TV Y
S Q~ d%\wV\v “ prevass \0. YR 9 Aue J1 ‘suowo)/morAsy 1039311 2oueULy

'LTOT 1hun a3ueyo jou [j1m A1ejes Aswony Aunop ayy, ‘970z ui ssies e 0 papnus

99 jou 14 suonisod a2y yeyl PaIOPISUOD PaYaa|as saSejuaoiod oYL suomisod yuoweSeurw-uou pue JuswaSeurw

usamyaq uoneredss e dooy pue aanneduwos suontsod ayy doay 03 pajoajas atom aA0qe saSejusoted oy sjeroyjo

P2199]3 Jo soLiefes oy Jumes me] 9eig Jo uonestjdde uo Paseq 1eak 19130 A19A3 S3SIRI OA10DI [[IM ‘uonisod
Aswony Kunoy sy o3 Jejius ‘pue A1458u07 Luno) uorup)-uoN sA10001 193u0] ou Jim suorpisod osay |,

» K1efes Aswiony Ajunoy) oy 3o o484 1o 9q [T Jostazadng K10A008I1(T 2y) Jo A1ejes 3L

* K1epes Lowrony Auno)) ayy jo %81 18 3q [[IM 1051A1adNG SSaUN A WTDIA SY) JO Arefes oy,
» AIe[es Aswony Ajuno) oy jo %8% 18 9q [[1 J0s1azadng 22130 [eSa] ot Jo Arefes L

*» A1eJes Loswony Ajunoy) o Jo o8¢ Je 2Q 14 J0jeSIUIPY 25O 943 Jo Arejes oy,

"sSuiaes Aoueoea
uo A[o31e] paseq Lrioyine 3o8pnq Sunsixo toly Jajsuen yim papuny aq [[im a3ueyo sy, - oedug [eosty ‘¢

"UOIJUSISI PUB JUSIIINIOAI

PIM §53001S 13im S180K JOF ABM ST} SUOP U93G SAEY salie[es siofeuew Aowoye oy, opeis Axejes

JuaLINd oY) Jo A1us oyj 0) 188130l Jou pue sannadwos Aeys 1jeys Aiejes oy waweoe[daljuawalnar uodn
"aanmeduios Kreres atowr suonisod ssaty OEU []IM PUE JUJSISUOD ST 2o)1unuo)) uoijesuadwor) Ajunop)

4 Jo uonoe pue aymyess Aq 3os st yorym Kejes Aowony Ayuno) syy 03 pon soutejes JuawaBeuey ‘pedueyo
9q 0} paou pue dAnadwI0d Jou o1e suonisod asay) 10j SoLIE[ES JUALING 3yl “Anpqisuodsal yo eare 1ofew o
S€ Paghuspl Uaaq sey 01330 N0 Jo SUOISIAID ajdhnu woIy Jye)s 1 jo suonelado Aep-o)-Aep oy SurSeuepy

‘Kowony
Aunog a3 Jo Aejes oy 03 soure[es  suonsod asoy Suiky Kepes jo uonedyIsse]dal 10y uoneoynsnf oy g

Juswageuey yyeis/Iosiatedng ssowt M-WdLA JuswaSeueiy
Jjergprosiaradng A10A00s1(] “YuouroSeuey jjerg / Josiazadng 20130 [eSo] “I0JeNSIUIWPY 901J() :SUOHISO |

JmuRZeUE 3381S A5u10))Y Ayunoy) Jof a3uey)) L1ejes 1oy uoneoynsnp
SYVd 01 wipuappp




€1/20 pastaz poruspjos - jusunreday

>utd — 1o1pny
@.ﬁpﬁoz ATeues — s50mosoy UBUINE]
[eUISUIO - 19PI029Y 29 NIS[D
\% IoqQUIdIN [1014ed U1 paraus a1
?z IeYD
5A01ddesI(q A01IadY

UONOY S ISUOISSTUIUIO)) SpuLswIo) “M'H

e 10309 aeq 1030911(J
S 7 STHC T/ Y Y
: 910N
:90uBUL] :$90IMOSIY UBWNE]
A (VEREIN
Aaeq Pesy 1usunreda/[eo1I0 P09l g
SZ-T1T-~7) 7 Dﬁx

T umodoy i ds T 1uedIeg

T unoooy maN ()| 1ueoIed T\ // - 0O\ é 1O¢ —:Surpung
e o RN

- UOTIBOIJISSB[O9Y /2,.,3.,\\()7\/ o 7\0/[/ 219010
- ;uonowWa(J | uonIsod pajespng maN
QweN
- :I19JSUBI] - uonisod sooerdeyy
- :uor0wWoIg - QI [eUOSess
- “UOTIRUTULID ], T oy yred dwog,
T owr] g dway

( - eIyay
he oiLall — [oUILT 1Teq TeSay
0\4 //r IOIIH MON T PwIy (g Iremsoy
™N-Q 4//_ /x;)))\/ :91qednddy se }29yD
Q/mu O\ O?J g Arefes 10 :98ueyD MNIL

t AQAA TS r/ /r
mdjﬂuﬁj \_O) § Areres ﬂﬁk 1D \ESAVI s //\J )«J(/ OPLL IS
e & \ \ \ \ 1918 2ATIT N\ATS ux/ [|/yTA AN _(/ -uIEN
so3ueyd [sunosIed papUaILIOd3I 107 Jusurredsp Sunentur oy Aq pa1a1dwod 9q 03 St | WOI30aS
[ (QERETN
LI0dHTd NOILDV TANNOSTHd

ALNNOD INOLSMOTTIX



A~ B XV 2y
S % d‘%\wv\v “n s \\v. >/ sop e 9 AU J1 ‘SJUSWIWIO ) /M1A0Y 10J0911(] oUBUL

'LTOT 1Wun s3ueyo jou |im Aefes Aswiony Aunoy 9L "9Z0Z ul asiel e 0} papnua
2qjou jjim suonisod Ay Jet) paIapIsSu0od paros]es soSejusoiod 9yl ‘suonisod juownSeue-uou pue JusweSeueul
us3m)aq woneredss e deay pue aannaduwios suonisod oy daay] 0} poyoajes srom dA0qe seBejueolad oy sjedyjo

P3199]2 JO saLre|es oy} Suines me Aerg Jo uonesydde uo Paseq 1eak 130 1940 SOSIRI 5419901 114 ‘uomsod
Aswiony Ajuno) ayj 0y repiuns ‘pue Aj1a08u07 AJUnoy) uorun)-uoN 9A12051 1a8uo] ou [j1m suonsod asay ],

« Arees Lowony Kunoy) ays Jo o4 18 2q []Im J0siAzadng K19A008I(T oY) Jo Arejes YL

« A1efes Kowiony Luno) o Jo 9,84 18 aq 1M J0SIAISANG SSAUIM /WINOIA 2y3 JO ATefes oy
«"AIe[es Aowony £junod oy Jo o484 e 3q [[14 Josiazedng 901)Q (eS8 oy3 Jo Arejes YL

* A1e[es Lowony Auno) oys jo o9¢ 1e 9q [[I4 J0JeNSIURUPY 2O oy Jo Klejes oy,

‘sguiaes Aoueoea
uo Ajo3e| paseq Aioyine 105pnq Sunsixs 1oy} Jajsuely (pim papury oq M oueyo siyJ, - yoedwy [easig €

"UOI3USIAI PUB JUSLIINIOAT

M §59001S 3im S1894 J0] Aem SIy) oUOp U2q aAey SaLIE[ES Siogeuewt Aowione sy -opeid Arejes

JuaLInd 3y} Jo AN Sy} 03 yeanal Jou pue sAnyadwos Aejs [1eys Arefes oy juawoedaiuswemal uodn
"aAnnadwos Kreres arow suonisod OS31} SN [[IM PUR JUSJSISUOD ST 20PIUIU0y) uonesuadwo)) Auno)

211 Jo uonoe pue a)nye)s £q 19s st yorym Aejes Kowony Auno) oy 03 pon sovrejes juswadeuey "padueyo
9q 0} pasu pue sAnNedwod Jou s suonisod 9say) 10§ SaLieles JuaLmd dyq 1, "Apiqisuodsal Jo eate 1ofeus oy
S€ PIyIusp! Useq sey 90130 N0 JO SUOISIAI Sjdnjnw woiy Jye)s ay3 Jo suonerado Aep-0j-Aep oyy SuiSeuepy

"Kouropy
AunoD ays jo Lrefes oty 03 souejes Suomsod asay Suiky Kiejes jo uonedyIsse[oal 10y uoneoynsnf sy

uawdSeury Jyeig/Iosiazedng SSOU M -WIIIOLA “‘JuowoSeue)y
Jjergposiazadng A1240081( yustuageuey Jyerg / Josiazadng 0o3Q [2897T “JojensIUILPY 991550 'suonisod |

Jusmageuey Jyeis Lowiony Ajuno)) Joj a3uey) Alejes 10y uoywoynsnp
SYYJ 01 unptappp




€1/20 pastaaz POIUSpIOS - Jusunredacy

Jyuid — Joupny
%3802 Areues — s90MOSoY UBLIN]
[BUISLIO - I9PI0OSY 29 NIS[D
\vg IOQUISIA] [1o1ked ur paIsjus s1B(]
r 7 xeqo
SAOIAGESI(] SA0IAAY

ooy s Hoaoﬁmmﬁﬁﬁoo ISIUSUWWOD) "W Y

Aeq 10}P1Q e 1030911(]

Gt “\2@ STRTTT IR
! 910N .
:90ueUL] :$90IMOSY UBNE]
(A ()iRETN
e PeoH jusunredacy/eIor 9109
Sz0T/81/CT
Esooo< mds T 1ueorsg - - -7z

T JUNOOOY MON 00T U901 ~ TTT - 0STOZ¥ - <TET - 00€¢ :Surpunyg

- “UOTJBOIJISSB[OY XX F3TP 2A0UST 190

I ;uonowa(J T UONISOJ Pa1aspnyg MON

QWEBN

— :I9JsueI] T uonsod sooejdoy

— :UOI}0WOoIg T “3II}] [BUOSEBOg

T “UO1RUTULI T, T oy e duo ],

T pwry g dws

T PInysy

T 2wy Jed Iemsoy

- OIIH MON XX PwIy, [N Iensoy

:91qedddy se yo9yD

T LSTYVE g Kreeg 1D 33TIsys Aandsd  :aSuey)) oLl

[V7SE ¢ Arefes "I0) 3ITA /3FTI8US Anded  ropyi] jusLm))

90¢/10/10 :21e(T 2A1I091YT SSTITeD Usped sweN

saSueyd [suuosiad pspuswooal 103 uourredop Suneniur o Aq payajdurod 9q 03 St | U0130aS
I woyd’g
LIOdTI NOILDY TINNOSIAd
AINNOD AINOLSMOTTIAX



€1/Z0 PasIARI POIusploS5 - jusunredacy

utd — 1011pnY
@E@Eoz ATeued — S90IMOSYY UBUIN

[eUISUO - 19pI099Y 29 YIo[D

\.% IOQUISN [101ked u1 paroius a1B(]
7 neo _

SA0IddesI(q SA0Iddy
UONOY S ISUOISSTUIUIO)) Sjuswro) “MH
aeq e 1030911
. STAZT T T 7P
910N
:90UBUL] :S90IMOSY UBWINH
A ) sRETN

eq PeoH 1usunreda/eoIO P09l g
5C-5/-2/ MM\WJVJNW :

T qunoooy uidS T juedIag

T JUNOOOY MON | U901 /// -- 001\t - Hm.@/ ”/dnnfﬂ@”mq%msm

- - oﬁmomﬂmmﬂww%éé@ d.NV adu//k.@ 0900
I aou%ma II

UonISOq pajespng MaN
QweN
- :I19Jsue1], T uonisod seoejdey
) T :uonowWoIg - ‘911 [eUO0Seas
Yt hL8c!$
JUOHBUTULID T, ll oy peg dwo],
! — v
7] - GG ] (g dws ]
\\Q QTQ\M Mwl oIy
mu - WL Hed IB[NSoy
— 2OITH MAN l PwIy ([0 rensey
el 0\...\/@ Cb,.v\/,wo,. X~ :9pqeonddy se yoouD

&N
N ON § Areres I e “u O : :08uey) apIL
d@\%@ MM‘W g i 1 }0 \O(/”.JMM«WM/M O[T JULLI))
ey, ¥ 1 .
NSO \ /L eraeamap T R

saSueyo [suuosiod papuswodal 10f Jusuredsp Sunentut a3 Aq paze[dwos oq 03 St | UO1I3S
R (JiREIN
LIO0dHd NOILOV TANNOSHHd
AINNOD INOLSMOTTIX




€1/20 PastALI

@o@&oz

\% ISQUISTA
L

POIUSp[O5 - Jusunyeday
uid — 1o031pnY

ATeued — S90MOSSY UBWNL]
[eUISLIO - J9PI0OSY 29 NIS[D
[1014ed U1 parejus a1e(]

1eyD
SA0IAAESI( 3A0IGAY
UOI0Y S ISUOISSTUIIO)) -SgsuIIo) y'H
e / eq 1030911(]
Vs il 3 )
_G2 e d] ] STHATTT Ry TP
N 910N
:90uBUL] :S90IMO0S9Y UBWIME]
7 U0
Aaeq Peoy jusunreda/[RIOIO PAIOd[T
- = O~ \
SZ-5]-27 N\“&ﬁ
T umodoy ydg JU92I9J R - -
T JUN029Y MON wordg I - 0ol -€€4 \oR S :Surpunyg

‘uonowa (]

T :Ioysuel],

T :uonoworg

ehehele e — R

49 NRORe!lF __ T

i T ‘oIl MaN
0/5»@710/ O\I/ﬂ/

9D uo ﬁm»ﬁ%m )

A )OIONWIWU $ Arereg

SREETA \ N et

"UOTBOIISSB[99Y mW éﬁ\& qu,ﬂ.m/Ouo&O

UONNISOJ PajasSpng maN
QureN
uonisod sooejdoy

:9ITH [BUOSEDS

oy, pedg dwag,
Pwry g dwa,
T ouwy, Jred remsoy
U], [ng Ie[n3ay

S N :9pqedjddy se 29yD
Q) -

dolfué{;nz\d @ Mwa//d :98uey) aIL

T H®AO (.S.«OO/@ 04.?6/\0 /./3&‘90 9L, JueIm))

OrAU//AJv ,.& == ,//..0 4/ :owIe N

s93ueqo [suuosiad papuswitooar 103 Jusunredsp Sunentur oz £Aq paje[dwos aq 03 St | UON0aS

[ uoyaIsg

LIO0dTI NOILDV TANNOSIId
ALNNOD AINOLSMOTTIX



B.O.C.C. Regular

Meeting Date: 01/06/2026

Title: Board Minutes
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Board Minutes - Lockwood Irrigation District

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file.

Attachments
Lockwood Irrigation Board Minutes




Meeting Minutes:

November 19, 2025

November meeting of the L.I.D. was held at the Lockwood Water and Sewer District office, at 1644 Old Hardin RD. The
board members present were Terry Seiffert by phone, Bob Riehl, Brent Kober and Manager Carl Peters. Logan Mclsaac
with Yellowstone County Public Works, Drew Vance with DOWL Engineering, Robbie Neihart with Performance
Engineering, and Doug Enderson with Dowl Engineering were also present.

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Bob Riehl. October 15, 2025, meeting minutes were reviewed, a motion
was made by Terry Seiffert, seconded by Brent Kober to approve the October 15" minutes, motion carried.

Public Comment: The Manager had something he wanted to add to the minutes from last month. When Taylor said that
he gave Kam with Northwestern Energy the Manager’s number, the manager never spoke to Kam it was Carson with
Millenium Electric that called the Manager about the date & time for Northwestern Energy’s installation of the 60’
power pole and underground electrical service.

New Business

1. OHR Sidewalk Project: Logan Mclssac gave the floor to Dowl’s engineers to explain the solution they came up
with for the drainage issues at Rykken Court. Doug Enderson goes over the beginning of the project and
construction. Mr. Enderson refers to the letter that the Manager sent to Dowl regarding the drainage into the
60’ ditch from the project. Doug refers to the memo sent in response to the Manager regarding the conclusion
they have reached to remedy this issue. Everything west of the western most part of Rykken Circle drains into
the diagonal part of the ditch, DOWL recommends removing the west end manhole drainage. The middle part of
Rykken Circle find its way to ditch through the grass at this point but it is being filtered to some degree before it
ever makes it to the ditch. The Eastern part of the park also drains into the ditch, DOWL is recommending adding
a 60 degree elbow to the inlet of the eastern manhole drainage to act as a riser pipe. This will allow the water to
pond and soak into the ground before going into the pipe. Bob Riehl said that the board does not want to set a
precedence here for the record. A motion to approve Dowl!’s revised drainage recommendations was made by
Brent Kober Seconded by Terry Seiffert. Motion carried.

2. $1,739,00.00 Bond: The County Treasurer overcharged 1,311 out of the total 1,474 parcels assessed for the new
pump station bond. Corrected tax statements were sent out by November 5%. The Manager received one call
on the assessments, and it was Doug Becker at Metra RV but hadn’t heard from anyone else.

3. New Pump Station Project: Robbie Neihart from Performance Engineering, reported that Askin has the pipe
connected to the new pump station. The only thing left is to connect is the electrical components at the pump
station and some at the 60 and 100 foot canals for the flow sensors. The last of the concrete was poured today
and the miscellaneous metal items are going to be installed as well. Mr. Neihart called Bond Counsel Dan
Semmens because the electrical guys are concerned that they may not have the electrical completed by the 30
to meet the substantial completion of the project because Northwestern won’t be on site to disconnect the
control box in the existing pump station building until Friday. Mr. Neihart is going to call Dan Semmens and see
if they can give us a few extra days to have the electrical and pipe installed. We have $16,000.00 dollars in
accrued interest in the bond account, and we still have some money left in the general conditions of the
contract. Mr. Neihart does not foresee any more change orders or additions to the project at this point. PAY
APP #4 for $130,150.00 and PCO #4 for $3,273.12 needs board approval. Mr. Neihart explains PCO #4 which is
to include a flange fitting on that pump station but along the way it got taken out, so the pump station that we
got did not include this flange. PCO # 4 includes the cost of the flange and the welding to attach it. A motion to
approve PAY APP #4 was made by Brent Kober and seconded by Terry Seiffert, motion carried. A motion was
made by Brent Kober to approve PCO#4, Terry Seiffert seconded the motion, motion carried. Northwest Energy



wants to meet on-site with the Manager and one of the engineers from Performance Engineering to discuss and
evaluate moving the pole they installed right over our pipe. Mr. Seiffert asked if moving the pole could cause
more damage to our pipe. Mr. Neihart says that this is a tough question to answer without knowing how close
the pole is to the pipe. The Manager is going to schedule this meeting and contact the board with the details via
email. Northwestern Energy is requiring a new easement which will parallel the west side of our 100’ lift pipe.

4. MDT Interchange Projects: The Manager heard back from the engineer on the Lockwood interchange project,
and he is asking for the design flow for the section of the 60’ canal that goes under I-90. The engineers report
that they are 60% done with the drawings for the project.

5. Clayton ST Project: 60’ Greenwood Culvert extension: The Manager met with developer Lance Story on the
17t of October and discovered that the encroachment permit fees were paid by the previous developer and the
plans haven’t changed. The Manager says that they will have to monitor the developer’s work to ensure that
the three 100’ lateral pipes remain in place to continue to drain into the 60’.

6. Required Audit: The Manager reports that he received an email from the state finally and we are required to do
an audit. They have not replied due to staffing changes. Terry Seiffert asked if the Manager could call Huntley
Project to see what accounting firm they use and report to the board on what you find.

Old Business

1. LID-LWSD Water Rights: Nothing new.
2. 2014 LID Rate Update 2019: On Hold.

Manager’s Report:

Phase three of the sewer project has 15 crossings of our two main canals. There was an email from Chad Hassler with
Askin Construction asking about this with Morrison-Maierle and they didn’t know that there were that many crossings or
that the encroachment fee was $500.00 dollars. Askin is asking for concessions to these fees. The board agreed that we
should consider the costs that are associated with each one (Carl’s time and the engineer’s time) to process each one.
Dale Hason did some work on the burn pile which was restacking the burn pile for a couple hundred dollars and some silt
removal and leveled the bank on the 100 ft, right at the shotcrete area on Sunrise and Greenwood because at the
beginning of the season that area of the canal overflows.Terry Seiffert wrote Melinda Odekoven a letter in 2013 about
them taking the bank down and the letter. The Manager has had conversations with Mrs. Odekoven about having the silt
removed and having the bank built back up, she seemed ok with it, but the Manager thinks that she should have to pay
for the bank to be restored to the way it was before they removed part of the bank. The Manager will get an estimate and
have a conversation with Mrs. Odekoven about splitting the cost of the silt removal and the bank repairs. The Manager is
going to get an estimate from Dale Hanson on this and then come up with a good number to charge Mrs. Odekoven for
the bank repairs. The Proposed closed system for six properties on Wanda LN has only one neighbor supporting it and that
is Mr. Buttman who proposed it. Everyone else has called the Manager to vote no because they have never used the
irrigation and don’t want to have access. The Board said to call Mr. Buttman and let him know that none of his neighbors
want access. Montana State funds were received, and the Manager proposes that the $1,111.15 2024 dividend check be
divided evenly between the Manager and the two ditch riders as a safety bonus, less $200.00 for safety equipment. Brent
Kober made a motion to approve the safety bonus, Terry Seiffert 2" this motion, motion carried. The Manager goes over
the items at the O&M that are over budget which would be the electricity, insurance, and silt removal, and shotcrete. We
are still $25,000 ahead of last year. The Manager does have an email out to Anna Miller to see if there is any help with the
cost of the audit, but the Manager has not received a response. Montana DES sent $1,252.50 For FEMA silt removal
because we did not spend all the money so the Manager asked County Finance to put this into our reserve account.

Secretary’s Report:




The October financial reports were presented, a motion was made by Brent Kober to approve the financials for October,
seconded by Bob Riehl. With no further business, a motion was made to adjourn by Brent Kober, 2" by Terry Seiffert,

the meeting was adjourned at 8:27PM. The next board meeting will be on December 17, 2025, at 7:00 PM, located at
the Lockwood Water and Sewer Office.

Respectfully submitted,
Angela Watson, Secretary/Treasurer



	Agenda
	AI_15911_Swearing in New Deputies
	AI_15873_Resolution 26-02 to Increase Solid Waste Disposal District Fee
	       ATT_Res _26-02 Raising Solid Waste Disposal Fee
	AI_15792_Notice of Public Hearing for Considering Budget Amendments for Fiscal Year 2026
	       ATT_Notice of Public Hearing for Considering Budget Amendments for Fiscal Year 2026
	7.1.a.__  Resolution #25 - 137 Travel & Per Diem Rates 2026
	       ATT_Res 25-137 Travel and Per Diem Reimb Rate
	7.1.b.__MetraPark Contract - Skybox Renovation - Bauer Construction, Inc.
	       ATT_Skybox Reno Contract
	AI_15906_BOND FOR LOST WARRANT
	       ATT_Bond for Lost Warrant MT _24193
	AI_15905_Contract Amendment No. 4 - YSC & DOC
	       ATT_Contract Amendment No. 4 - YSC and DOC
	AI_15910_PARS
	       ATT_PARS
	AI_15909_Board Minutes
	       ATT_Lockwood Irrigation Board Minutes

